@ Metro
Agenda

600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736

Meeting: Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting

Date: Monday, June 10, 2024

Time: 3:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m.

Place: Virtual meeting (Zoom link)

Purpose: Committee discussion and finalization of their findings and recommendations for
the Affordable Housing Bond

3:00 p.m. Welcome and Introductions

3:15 p.m. Public comment

3:25 p.m. Staff presentation: Quarterly report

3:35 p.m. Committee discussion: Committee findings and recommendations to Metro Council

4:05 p.m. Staff Updates

4:20 p.m. Break

4:30 p.m. COO Update: Regional Housing Funding process update

5:25 p.m. Staff updates and next steps

5:30 p.m.

Adjourn


https://zoom.us/j/92756000843?pwd=bHJUblZiTUpwOTBYaDVEY21seFhCdz09

Metro respects civil rights

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes that ban discrimination. If any person believes they have been discriminated against
regarding the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information
on Metro’s civil rights program, or to obtain a discrimination complaint form, visit www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1536.Metro provides services or

accommodations upon reguest to persons with disabilities and people who need an interpreter at public meetings. If you need a sign language interpreter, communication
aid or language assistance, call 503-797-1700 or TDD/TTY 503-797-1804 (8 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 5 business days before the meeting: All Metro meetings are wheelchair
accessible. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet's website at www.trimet.org.

Théng bio vé sy Metro khdng ky thi cia

Metro ton trong dan quyén. Mudn biét thém théng tin vé chuong trinh dan quyén
clia Metro, hodc mudn I8y don khiu nai vé sy ki thi, xin xem trong
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Néu quy vi can théng dich vién ra d4u bing tay,
trg gilip vé tiép xtc hay ngdn ngit, xin goi s6 503-797-1700 (tir 8 gi¢r sang dén 5 giy
chidu vao nhitng ngay thudng) truéc budi hop 5 ngay lam viéc.

MoeigomneHHs Metro npo 3a6opoHy gucKpUmiHaLii

Metro 3 NoBaroio CTaBUThCA A0 FPOMaAAHCHKMX Npas. a8 oTpumaHHaA iHbopmau,i
npo nporpamy Metro i3 3axMcTy rpOMagAHCLKUX Npas a6o Gopmu cKapru npo
AUCKpUMIHaLLKO BiaBiaaiTe caliT www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. abo fAikwo sam
notpibeH nepeknanay Ha 36opax, AR 33[,0BONEHHA BALIOro 3anuTy 3atenedoHyiTe
33 Homepom 503-797-1700 3 8.00 o 17.00 y poboui gHi 3a n'aTb pobounx aHis go
36opis.

Metro BY-F IR A

PEECHE - HERAEMetro U HES T TRAVEENS » SUMEHUR BHLETZE - FHEEAEG
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights - {15 #RIESECIRR o b dhlrss » S5 (rdr
A H P A58 E 0§ 7503-797-

1700 ( TIFH LF8RET5HR ) - DUERIMTRE LK -

Ogeysiiska takooris la’aanta ee Metro

Metro waxay ixtiraamtaa xuquugda madaniga. Si aad u heshid macluumaad ku
saabsan barnaamijka xuguugda madaniga ee Metro, ama aad u heshid wargadda ka
cabashada takoorista, boogo www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Haddii aad u baahan
tahay turjubaan si aad uga qaybqaadatid kullan dadweyne, wac 503-797-1700 (8
gallinka hore illaa 5 gallinka dambe maalmaha shagada) shan maalmo shaqo ka hor
kullanka si loo tixgaliyo codsashadaada.

Metro] A F4] FE XA
Metro®] Al 9171 2 Mo o) AR s AP el FAE dod, E

rr

Aol o) §F &S 4151 S Srwww.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. &212] ¢1o]
#flo] g o g -, 3 e]o] A 5 AP Y (LF 5A] F+Foll .7 84]) 503-797-
17008 T&3ch

Metro®DZERIIZE - A

Metro T X2 AR A WE L T 7 « MetroD N REEZ O 7 2 AL 2158
WZDWT ~ ERIEENEE 7 4+ — 4% AFT 5121 - www.oregonmetro.gov/
civilrights < ¥ THEE Z 3 WAHSH TEERE ST L SR 55T -
Metros CEFEIZ IS T & 5 L 5 ~ SBHEROsSERHA £ TIl2503-797-

1700 (FH/FHIBI~FIESH) ¥ THEE( a3 -

insAgeRainafimIS STl Bus Metro
FFINA§NUIZIUN 1 nUASEHSHARYTISGENUWIRIUN Metro
yifdjsgumauiimuifinyususasiisns i
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights®

i sEREFERUSTUAasTinuHg

[USantnIan: PFIINU/RIUS 503-797-1700 (1EnH g FIM8nens 5 ane
igugen) (Sfiitg

igiSen usigUuSi SO Esugu U aialiu I MSES 9

Metro Ge Jaadl pieg ol

SSE Iy o Al G iall Metro gelix Usa s slaall o 3 3all Agaall 3 siall Metro o yias
dalay <€ o) www.oregonmetro. qovicivilrights o s ASIYY g sall 5,45 o sk ¢ el 2
i (ala 8 Aol (30) 503-797-1700 i o8 5 Lot el e oy il 3 B2eluss )
lain¥) se ga 0 Jao ol (5) Fusad 8 (Raeadl ) G Al cleliss 5 dolidl

Paunawa ng Metro sa kawalan ng diskriminasyon

Iginagalang ng Metro ang mga karapatang sibil. Para sa impormasyon tungkol sa
programa ng Metro sa mga karapatang sibil, o upang makakuha ng porma ng
reklamo sa diskriminasyon, bisitahin ang www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Kung
kailangan ninyo ng interpreter ng wika sa isang pampublikong pulong, tumawag sa
503-797-1700 (8 a.m. hanggang 5 p.m. Lunes hanggang Biyernes) lima araw ng
trabaho bago ang pulong upang mapagbigyan ang inyong kahilingan.

Notificacién de no discriminacion de Metro

Metro respeta los derechos civiles. Para obtener informacion sobre el programa de
derechos civiles de Metro o para obtener un formulario de reclamo por
discriminacion, ingrese a www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights . Si necesita asistencia
con el idioma, llame al 503-797-1700 (de 8:00 a. m. a 5:00 p. m. los dias de semana)
5 dias laborales antes de la asamblea.

YeepomneHue o HeAONYLW,EHUH JUCKPUMUHaL MK oT Metro

Metro ysax<aeT rpa)kaaHcKu1e npasa. Y3HaTb o nporpamme Metro no cobnioaeHuio
rPXKAAHCKUX NPaB ¥ NONYHUTL GOpMY Hanobbl 0 AUCKPMMKUHALMM MOXKHO Ha Be6-
calite www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. EC1 Bam Hy}KeH NepeBoauuK Ha
obuwecteeHHOM cobpaHuK, OCTaBbTe CBOW 3aNpoc, NO3BOHMB No Homepy 503-797-
1700 B paboumne gHu ¢ 8:00 ao 17:00 v 3a nATe paboumx AHel Ao aaTbl cobpaHua.

Avizul Metro privind nediscriminarea

Metro respecta drepturile civile. Pentru informatii cu privire la programul Metro
pentru drepturi civile sau pentru a obtine un formular de reclamatie impotriva
discriminarii, vizitati www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Dacé aveti nevoie de un
interpret de limba3 la o sedintd publica, sunati la 503-797-1700 (intre orele 85i 5, in
timpul zilelor lucratoare) cu cinci zile lucratoare inainte de sedintd, pentru a putea sa
va raspunde in mod favorabil la cerere.

Metro txoj kev ntxub ntxaug daim ntawv ceeb toom

Metro tributes cai. Rau cov lus ghia txog Metro txoj cai kev pab, los yog kom sau ib
daim ntawv tsis txaus siab, mus saib www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Yog hais tias
koj xav tau lus kev pab, hu rau 503-797-1700 (8 teev sawv ntxov txog 5 teev tsaus
ntuj weekdays) 5 hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej ntawm lub rooj sib tham.

February 2017



@ Metro

Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Summary

Meeting: Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting

Date: Monday, May 13, 2024

Time: 3:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m.

Place: Virtual meeting (Zoom)

Purpose: Staff presentation and committee discussion of regional trends and key findings for

2023 annual report

Attendees

Jeffery Petrillo (he/him), Karen Shawcross (she/her), Jesse Neilson (he/him), Katherine Rozsa
(she/her), Andrea Sanchez(she/her), Mara Romero (she/her), Co-chair Jenny Lee (she/her), Co-
chair Steve Rudman (he/him), Scott Greenfield (he/him), Ex-officio Councilor Mary Nolan
(they/them), Ann Leenstra (she/her)

Metro staff

Patricia Rojas (she/her), Emily Lieb (she/her), Jimmy Oporta (he/him), Alison Wicks (she/her),
Sandi Saunders (she/her), Mercedes Evangelista (she/her)

Facilitator
Ben Duncan, Kearns & West (she/her)

Note: The meeting was recorded via Zoom; therefore, this meeting summary will remain at a high-
level overview. Please review the recording and archived meeting packet for details and presentation
slides.

Welcome and Introductions
Co-chair Jenny Lee shared appreciation for the in-person space.
Co-chair Steve Rudman thanked the group for their continued work.

Ben Duncan, Kearns & West, facilitated introductions between the Committee members, reviewed
the agenda, in-room safety details, and thanked the Committee members for their participation.

Ben asked for the Committee’s approval of the April 1 and April 15 Oversight Committee Meeting
Summaries. Karen Shawcross asked that the project team make a correction to the April 1 Meeting
Minutes.

e Page 6: Change “Development Fees” to “Developer Fees”

Karen Shawcross motioned to approve the April 1 and April 15 Meeting Minutes. Jenny Lee
seconded the motion. The Meeting Minutes were unanimously approved.

Public Comment
No public comment was received.

Page 1



@ Metro

Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Summary

Director Update

Patricia Rojas, Metro Regional Housing Director, provided a staffing update and announced that
Metro hired six new Housing Department positions. She shared a budget update and noted that the
FY2025 proposed budget includes a request for additional Affordable Housing Bond (AHB) funds as
well as an additional communications staff position. She shared that Metro will be adding $950,000
annually moving forward to balance the deficit.

Patricia shared a brief update from the Stakeholder Advisory Table (SAT) on Friday, May 10 as well
as next steps for engagement with partners.

Co-Chair Steve Rudman added that the (SAT) meeting ended with more alignment between Metro
and the County partners.

Conflict of Interest Declarations
Co-chair Jenny Lee declared that she works for the Coalition of Communities of Color which is
contracted with Metro.

Andrea Sanchez declared that she works for the Housing Development Center and has clients that
receive Bond funds from Metro.

Metro Staff Presentation and Committee Discussion: Regional Trends and Key Findings for
Annual Report

Alison Wicks, Metro, shared that Committee members will hear an update on the AHB progress
which will be shared with Metro Council in July. She shared that a draft report was included in the
meeting packet and provided an overview of the AHB guiding principles.

Section 1 (Unit Production, Geographic Distribution, and Community Engagement)

Jimmy Oporta, Metro, introduced himself and shared an overview of AHB production including the
total number of homes, number of very affordable homes, and family sized homes. He shared the
projections for the number of community members housed by the AHB program and provided an
overview of the number of units in production by jurisdiction. Jimmy added that the partners are
expected to complete all projects by 2029 and that the program is expected to achieve 120% of its
production target. Jimmy described the geographic distribution of AHB funds around the region and
noted that the majority of sites are highly walkable with good access to transit.

Co-chair Steve Rudman asked for the locations of the four projects that do not have affordable
housing within a 1-mile radius.

Jimmy Oporta, Metro, shared that Metro will follow-up with that information.

Jimmy Oporta, Metro, shared an update on the program’s community engagement effort and how
key feedback was incorporated into the projects.

Scott Greenfield asked if funding allocations were predefined.

Emily Lieb, Metro, shared that allocations were based on where property tax revenue is
generated.

Page 2



@ Metro

Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Summary

Karen Shawcross noted a discrepancy between the number of residents listed in the report and the
presentation.

Alison Wicks, Metro, shared that the project team will make the necessary correction.

Co-Chair Steve Rudman asked whether the jurisdictions would meet their goals if there were a
deficit in funding.

Jimmy Oporta, Metro, shared that the jurisdictions are expected to meet their goals.

Section 2 (Equitable Access, Equitable Contracting and Workforce, Permanent Supportive
Housing)

Mercedes Evangelista, Metro, described the percentage of construction costs allocated to COBID
certified firms as well as workforce diversity utilization that was tracked for four projects. She
shared a list of communities defined as priority communities and detailed a breakdown of the
number of units designated for communities of color, families with children, multiple generations,
senior and older adults, veterans, people experiencing or at risk of homelessness, people with
disabilities, and people experiencing or at risk of displacement.

Mercedes informed the group that the AHB projects are required to prove the use of affirmative
marketing and low barrier screening in order to reduce barriers to access. She shared a report on
leasing outcomes and described the total units available, total rental applications received, and total
percentage of applicants housed. Mercedes shared the demographics of bond-funded unit residents
and described the breakdown of Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) units for the different
jurisdictions.

Mara Romero commented that the disability statistics look to be under reported. She asked what
Metro is doing to encourage people to report their demographics.

Mercedes Evangelista, Metro, clarified that the percentages are compared to regional census
data and that Metro has improved the form for collecting demographics.

Jimmy Oporta, Metro, shared that post-occupancy forms ask for ADA accommodation requests
and responses but noted that there is a delay in including that data in reporting.

Andrea Sanchez asked for clarification on the number referenced in the regional demographics
comparisons. She asked for clarification on the takeaway from the “Disability Status” slide.

Alison Wicks, Metro, shared that the statistic references demographics data from the American
Community Survey (ACS). She shared that Metro can add disclaimers to the “Disability Status”
slide to clarify the data source and noted that the comparison is intended to serve as a
benchmark for understanding the degree to which people experiencing a disability are served
by the program.

Jeff Petrillo asked whether the statistics in the report include projects that have been completed,
are under construction, and are in pre-development.

Page 3



@ Metro

Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Summary

Alison Wicks, Metro, shared that it depends on the statistic and the subset of projects it is
referencing.

Karen Shawcross asked whether the statistics will be shared with Metro Council.
Alison Wicks, Metro, shared that they will.

Co-Chair Jenny Lee asked whether Metro has the ability to track applications geographically and if
there is any relationship to other regulated affordable housing within a mile.

Mercedes Evangelista, Metro, shared that data is tracked by the property managers and that
Metro can follow up with that information.

Katie Rozsa asked how many residents have participated in the North/Northeast Preference Policy.

Mercedes Evangelista, Metro, shared that that data will be included in the next annual report.
Andrea Sanchez shared that often times the time it takes to lease up a unit can be dependent on
communities sharing the opportunity among themselves. She added that communities can be a big
driver of applicant make up.

Emily Lieb, Metro, shared that Metro looks at demand across unit sizes.

Scott Greenfield asked for clarification on the low-barrier screening and asked what the target and
strategy is for the screening.

Emily Lieb, Metro, shared that Metro’s policy framework includes an intention to support low-
barrier screening and that Metro has included that as a requirement for partners as well. She
shared that there is a range of best practices that have been discussed with partners. She
added that the tenant screening plans are detailed and that it can take significant work to get
an agreed upon standard.

Mara Romero shared that the Fair Housing Council of Oregon has guides on low barrier screening.

Jeff Petrillo shared a recommendation to call out the Opal Project’s focus on serving LGBTQ+
seniors and noted that it is a pioneering project for the region.

Karen Shawcross asked how long Metro will monitor annual progress on the projects.
Emily Lieb, Metro, shared that Metro will be monitoring for 10-years, or until the project has
been completed.
Section 3 (Sustainability and climate resilience, Efficient use of funds)
Alison Wicks provided an overview of the 2021 policy guidance that set aside funds for in-unit
cooling. She provided an overview of strategies that lead toward sustainable development and

noted that the AHB portfolio represents $2.18 billion in investments. She shared a breakdown of

Page 4



@ Metro

Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Summary

the capital funding sources and noted that low-income housing tax credits, Metro AHB funds,
permanent loans and sponsor contribution represent the four largest funding sources.

Alison shared that the average cost of Metro bond units is $447,053 and showed the Metro Bond
subsidy associated with those costs. She shared that development costs have increased and shared
the number of units designed for very low income, project-based rental assistance, and wraparound
services.

Alison shared an overview of the economic impact of the bond program. She added that Bond
funded units have represented approximately 15% of multifamily housing construction in the
region and have supported 3,203 construction jobs annually.

Karen Shawcross asked what the Metro Council’s reaction to this section of the report will be.
Councilor Nolan shared that the Metro Council understands that long term affordability needs
to be funded up front. They added that the public might need more information to understand
the details of the costs.

Andrea Sanchez asked how the connection between policy goals and other costs can be identified.
Councilor Nolan shared that there are policies that are internally conflicting. They shared that
the Committee could highlight the cost of policies to inform the public on the additional
services included with the projects. They shared that without that context it can be hard to
Jjustify the project per-unit costs when they are compared with the median cost of units
regionally.

Jeff Petrillo shared that the issue of explaining low-income housing costs has been a challenge in the

past. He shared that the costs should be framed as long-term investments and public assets and

noted that housing is a stabilizer and provides a public benefit.

Co-Chair Steve Rudman shared that it is important for taxpayers to understand the costs associated
with low-income housing.

Scott Greenfield shared that almost 40% of funding comes from low-income tax credits. He shared
examples of additional strategies for building low-income housing and noted that the AHB is one

tool in the toolbox.

Co-Chair Jenny Lee shared that the benefit of AHB units is that you can fill in missing gaps in the
housing supply.

Karen Shawcross suggested that Metro develop a cost breakdown to show how the average per-
unit price for affordable housing is calculated.

Jeff Petrillo asked whether the permanent loans represent bank debt or bond debt.
Allison Wicks, Metro, shared that permanent loans are typically bank loans.

Jeff Petrillo suggested that Metro include a cost breakdown of the average private sector deal.

Page 5



@ Metro

Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Summary

Section 4 (Adapting our program to respond to challenges and opportunities)

Emily Lieb, Metro, reviewed the Committee’s recommendations on maximizing housing bond
resources and shared that the recommendations will go to Metro Council in June of 2023. She
shared that Metro will be coordinating with partners and stakeholders to advance the Committee’s
recommendations. She provided an update on Metro’s efforts to regionalize best practices around
post-occupancy reporting and affordable homeownership standards and templates, and the Tri-
County Planning Body’s work on regional training and technical assistance.

Emily shared Metro’s strategy for strengthening system integration and alignment. She noted that
Metro earmarked funding to support additional investments in expanding affordable housing and
has coordinated with Oregon Housing and Community Services to advance funding alignment.
Emily described the PSH Pilot funding and described the resulting efforts in Clackamas County,
Washington County, and Multnomah County. Emily shared that Metro convened a Stakeholder
Advisory Table to advise the Metro Chief Operating Officer (COO) on a recommendation to Metro
Council in June.

Emily provided an overview of the lessons learned from the Committee as well as the strategic
partners and shared a report-out on themes for continued focus areas.

Co-Chair Steve shared that the idea of community assets needs to be defined. He shared that the
difficulty of managing properties needs to be tracked for potential corrections. He shared the
importance of keeping funds nimble.

Karen Shawcross shared concern for the operation of properties after lease-up. She shared concern
that the people with the most need are not signing leases and suggested adding monitoring into the
IGAs.

Jeff Petrillo shared that most of what will be built will require more subsidy due to reduced Low-
Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) pricing, increased interest rates, and insurance availability.

Co-Chair Steve Rudman shared that long term funding should be a consideration as Metro
integrates SHS with Bond Funds.

Karen Shawcross shared that the budgeted resident services per unit could be tracked to provide a
helpful data point. She added that she is waiting on follow-up from an action item regarding
feedback from property managers.

Closing and Next Steps
Co-chairs Steve Rudman and Jenny Lee provided closing remarks.

Ben Duncan, Kearns & West, shared that next steps include:

Committee members to review annual report and send comments by 5/20

Metro to send Findings and Recommendations in advance of June 10 Meeting

Metro to follow-up on Advisory Table

Metro to share the locations of the four projects that do not have affordable housing within
a 1-mile radius

Page 6



@ Metro

Housing Bond Oversight Committee Meeting Summary

Metro to update number or residents statistic in the 2023 annual report.

e Metro to clarify data used for regional demographics charts.

e Metro to follow up with any geographic focuses for housing applications and any
relationship to other regulated affordable housing within a mile.

e Metro to provide feedback from property managers on lease up and building management
experiences.

Karen Shawcross asked if the committee can review draft pages 53-54 in advance of the June 10
meeting.

Allison Wicks, Metro, shared that Metro will be providing those pages in advance of the
meeting.

Adjourn
The meeting adjourned at 5:30 p.m.

Page 7



@ Metro

Memo Portand, OR 97252273
Date: June 10, 2024

To: Metro Council

From: Metro Housing Bond Community Oversight Committee

Subject: 2023 Annual Report

A report to the Metro Council and the community from the Metro
Housing Bond Community Oversight Committee

We are pleased to present the 2023 annual report for the Metro affordable housing
bond, covering the period from January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023.

The Metro Housing Bond Community Oversight Committee has reviewed progress
reports from all eight implementation partner agencies, as well as an analysis of
regional progress and performance presented by Metro staff. The committee also
reviews quarterly progress and expenditure reports on an ongoing basis to
monitor and evaluate progress toward production and policy goals outlined in the
Metro Council’s adopted policy framework for the bond.

The bond framework established a goal of creating at least 3,900 new homes as
well as policy expectations for advancing racial equity throughout the
implementation process. This report demonstrates that the bond is delivering on
its promises. Metro and its partners are on track to build 800 more homes than
expected, bringing 4,700 affordable homes to the region. These new affordable
homes will help tackle the region’s housing shortage and stabilize communities so
that all people can thrive.

KEY HIGHLIGHTS

In its fourth year of implementation, the bond program outpaced housing
production targets while continuing to make significant progress in advancing
regional goals to increase equitable access to housing.

Production progress

As of December 2023, there were 52 bond-funded projects underway that
will provide 4,361 new affordable homes. These homes represent 112% of
the bond’s total unit production target of 3,900 affordable homes.

e Total units: The 4,361 affordable homes (which are collectively referred to as
the “bond portfolio” throughout the report) include 1,410 units that have
completed construction, 1,374 units under construction and 1,577 units in pre-
construction.



Regional progress toward production goals

Total homes i/}

1,635 homes
Very affordable homes [E/ Wy BT EIIN (target +35)

2,233 homes

- (target +283)
Family-sized homes (2+ BR) [} 808

B Complete | Underconstruction il Pre-construction

e Family-size units: 2,233 of these homes will have two or more bedrooms,
representing 115% of the program’s production goal for family-size homes.

e Deeply affordable units: 1,635 of these homes will be affordable to
households with incomes at or below 30% of area median income,
representing 102% of the program’s production goal for deeply affordable
homes.

Plans are in place that will commit all remaining bond funds by 2025 with final
projects expected to break ground by 2026. The program is projected to achieve
atleast 120% of its original production target once all funds are expended,
creating an estimated 4,700 affordable homes that will provide housing for 9,000
to 15,000 people across the region.

By December 2023, 1,443 people had moved into their new homes in 10
bond-funded projects located in Beaverton, Forest Grove, Gladstone, Gresham,
Happy Valley, Portland and Tigard.

Addressing disparities and advancing racial equity

Metro and its implementation partners are making ongoing progress in moving
forward the bond program’s goals of addressing disparities, increasing equitable
access to housing and advancing racial equity:

e Addressing disparities through project location: The locations of the bond
portfolio’s homes expand access to housing options in a diversity of areas
throughout the region: 42% of units are located in areas that have historically
lacked affordable housing, 58% are located in areas where communities at risk
of displacement live today and 42% are located in areas historically
inaccessible to communities of color. This not only improves access to
affordable housing in communities across greater Portland and provides

4,361homes
target +461)



residents with greater choice about where to live, it also helps connect people
to schools, jobs and other opportunities while preventing displacement in
changing neighborhoods.

Affordable housing bond project locations

‘ Complete

O In Construction
& L Metro Data Resource Center O Pre-construction
—— O \IVIIIES

Advancing economic opportunity through construction: Bond-funded
projects represented about 15% of regional multifamily housing construction
in 2023 and have supported an average of 3,286 jobs in the construction sector
annually - jobs that pay an average of $91,000 per year in wages and benefits.
To ensure equitable access to the economic opportunities provided by bond
investments, the program aims to direct construction contracts to
underrepresented firms. The bond’s development projects are on track to meet
or exceed the regional goal of at least 20% of construction contract funding
going to state certified minority- or women-owned and/or emerging small
businesses (MWESB). Ten projects reached completion in 2022 and 2023 with
a combined $50.3 million in contracts paid to certified MWESB firms,
representing 24.9% of total construction costs.

Promoting equitable access through marketing and lease-up: All bond
projects are required to develop plans for affirmatively marketing housing
opportunities and reducing lease-up barriers to ensure equitable access to
bond-funded units. Data from projects that have completed lease-up suggest



that these affirmative marketing and lease-up strategies are working, with a
higher percentage of people of color housed in bond-funded units than the
percentage of households with low incomes that are people of color in the
surrounding neighborhoods and the region as a whole.

Advancing housing stability through services: On-site services can support
households with low incomes to remain stably housed. Across the 52 projects
in the portfolio, 96% include formal partnerships with culturally responsive or
culturally specific organizations to provide resident services and other
programming. In addition, 56% of projects will provide ongoing case
management for households in permanent supportive housing units intended
for people exiting long-term homelessness; 55% of these projects are
leveraging funding from Metro’s supportive housing services fund.

Promoting community engagement: Implementation partners and
developers are expected to conduct outreach and organize engagement
opportunities to involve the community in providing input on project design,
services and other priorities. In 2023 more than 1,103 people participated in
community engagement opportunities to inform planning for 16 projects. Their
input led to modifications to outdoor areas, common spaces, unit amenities, on-
site services, security features and parking.

Addressing emerging opportunities and challenges

Metro works with its partners on an ongoing basis to support regional alignment
and coordination in response to emerging challenges and opportunities. Key policy
and program refinement work undertaken in 2023 included:

Convening stakeholders to regionalize best practices: Metro worked with
stakeholders and partners to improve post-occupancy reporting on marketing,
screening and demographic data, resulting in improved data quality. Metro also
worked with partners to create standards and templates for affordable
homeownership projects, supporting the addition of four homeownership
developments to the portfolio. The tri-county planning body, which develops
regional strategies to support implementation of Metro’s supportive housing
services fund, identified six regional goals that will guide investments to
address homelessness.

Strengthening system integration and alignment: Metro dedicated funding
and staff capacity to strengthen regional permanent supportive housing
coordination and alignment, which includes supporting jurisdictional partners
to align housing bond and supportive housing services resources. Metro also
continued to coordinate with Oregon Housing and Community Services on
funding alignment while supporting federal legislative changes that would
increase the availability of private activity bonds.



Analysis and planning for the future: Metro Council laid the groundwork for
a community conversation to explore how the region can continue to work
together to create affordable homes as well as provide services that keep
people housed. A stakeholder advisory table was convened in early 2024 that
will inform a recommendation from Metro’s chief operating officer to the Metro
Council on future funding options. Metro also expanded its staffing capacity to
focus on programmatic integration and policy alignment of Metro’s capital
development and supportive housing services funds - work that is critical to
the region’s ability to deliver on its housing commitments.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The committee commends Metro and its implementation partners on the
milestones reached this year. The bond program is on track to exceed unit
production goals, and considerable progress has been made on the committee’s
previous recommendations. This sets a firm platform for the committee to make
the following recommendations to continue to optimize the impact of these
resources and set up the region to continue to address pressing regional housing
needs.

Funding coordination and alignment: Bond projects continue to face
challenges due to unprecedented cost escalation and statewide shifts necessary
to address private activity bond constraints. Metro should continue to work
with funding and development partners to ensure that projects have the
flexibility and support they need to navigate funding gaps or other barriers.
Metro should continue to coordinate with Oregon Housing and Community
Services and jurisdictional partners on funding processes and alignment to
provide predictability and certainty for developers, ensure that funding and
underwriting standards are responsive to their needs, and prioritize deeply
affordable and permanent supportive housing units.

Affordable housing operations: While the bond program is exceeding its
housing production goals and demonstrating strong outcomes for racial equity
in construction and initial marketing, the ongoing stability of residents - and
the organizations that own and operate the housing - will be the long-term
measure of success for this program. Affordable housing owners and operators
face new challenges navigating rising operating costs and supporting property
management and operational practices that are responsive to the needs of
residents. Metro should conduct an analysis and convene stakeholders to
evaluate needs/gaps and identify opportunities to support property
management and operational practices that will ensure long-term stewardship
of the community assets created through this investment program.

Continue to plan for the future: Metro should continue working with
partners and stakeholders to develop plans to ensure the region can address its



affordable housing needs into the future. This includes planning for continued
funding for affordable housing and the integration and alignment of Metro’s
capital and supportive housing services funds to ensure that we are
maximizing the impact of these combined investments in addressing our
region’s housing and homelessness crisis.

The Portland region should be proud that we are addressing the national issues of
affordable housing and homelessness with an active approach that centers racial
equity. This bond continues to be successful and will exceed the commitments
made to voters. We have an opportunity to build upon this work and expand its
impact. We would like to applaud Metro and jurisdictional partner staff for their
continued dedication, and we are honored to have the opportunity to provide
oversight for this important program for our region.

Thank you,

Jenny Lee (Co-chair)
Steve Rudman (Co-chair)
Scott Greenfield

Ann Leenstra

Jesse Neilson

Jeffery Petrillo

Mara Romero

Katherine Rozsa

Andrea Sanchez

Karen Shawcross



@ Metro
Memo

600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736

Date: Monday, June 3, 2024
To: Affordable Housing Bond Oversight Committee
From: Craig Beebe, Val Galstad, Elizabeth Goetzinger

Project management team, Regional Housing Funding

Subject:  Staff report: Update on Regional Housing Funding conversations

In advance of the June 10, 2024 Affordable Housing Bond Oversight Committee meeting, this memo
provides an overview, key themes and next steps for the development of a potential Chief Operating
Officer recommendation to the Metro Council regarding future regional funding for affordable
housing and homeless services.

This conversation has brought together the lessons and potential of two key funding measures
approved by Metro region voters: the 2018 Affordable Housing Bond and the 2020 Supportive
Housing Services measure. SHS and bond funding work closely together to serve deeply-impacted
households - providing funding for both physical housing, and the services and rent assistance to
create stability and opportunity for people in great need.

After several years of successful implementation, the Metro housing bond is nearing the expected
exhaustion of its funding. There continues to be great need for creating and preserving affordable
housing. However, a new bond measure - which would be a tax increase - is not viable at this time,
while SHS funds cannot currently be used to create permanent affordable housing. Together, these
factors create the risk of a serious gap in regional affordable housing funding that impacts a wide
variety of populations as well as the success of SHS spending.

Metro Council direction and values

In January 2024, Metro Chief Operating Officer Marissa Madrigal sought and received direction
from the Metro Council to undertake a multipronged exploration of options to address this gap and
return with a recommendation on how to move forward.

The Metro Council established several key values to guide the development of a COO
recommendation:

e Meeting the urgent and continuing need for housing and services

e Demonstrating pragmatism in understanding what is likely to be viable with public opinion

and fiscal constraints

e Supporting the stability of existing housing and homeless services systems

e Building on the bond and SHS measures’ commitment to advancing racial equity

e Ensuring and deepening transparency and accountability

Channels of input
Several key channels of input have informed the development of a COO recommendation, as
illustrated in the attached graphic. These have included the following.

Stakeholder Advisory Table

Appointed by COO Madrigal, the Stakeholder Advisory Table was intended to bring together a
broad diversity of interests, experiences and perspectives on issues of housing and homeless
services needs. The Advisory Table, which held its fifth and final meeting on May 10, included



STAFF REPORT: HOUSING FUNDING PROJECT JUNE 3, 2024

county and city elected officials, providers and advocates, community-based organizations, and
business leaders from across the region, as well as members of the SHS and affordable housing
bond oversight committees and Metro’s Committee on Racial Equity.

Community partner-led engagement

Metro contracted with the Coalition of Communities of Color to conduct discussion groups with
impacted communities, providers and community organizations in Clackamas, Multnomah, and
Washington counties in April and May 2024. This engagement has built on partnership and
engagement that shaped the 2018 bond framework and implementation, as well as the 2020 SHS
measure.

Engagement with regional committees, implementation partners and stakeholders

Metro staff at all levels have repeatedly engaged with and heard feedback from implementation
partners and oversight committees for both the bond and SHS, Metro’s Committee on Racial Equity,
the Metro Policy Advisory Committee, and a variety of other stakeholders.

Technical analysis

Metro’s Housing Department are working with a consultant team to scan best practices, apply
lessons from past measures, conduct interviews with practitioners and implementation partners,
and develop modeling to evaluate the potential of various investment strategies to meet current
need and priorities. Metro’s Finance and Regulatory Services staff are also assessing revenue
volatility, forecasts and considerations for carry-forward and reserves.

Public opinion research

To date, Metro has conducted two public opinion surveys with a representative sample of regional
voters. These surveys help illustrate the feasibility of a potential measure, should the COO
recommend and the Metro Council refer it to voters.

Key themes of input

This process was intentionally designed not to drive toward full regional consensus or a predefined
outcome. Indeed, through the above channels, COO Madrigal and staff have explicitly sought to
catalog and apply common ground as well as areas of divergence in various stakeholders’ views on
these complex topics.

To date, staff have heard several broad themes emerge throughout the channels of input. These
include:

e Anopenness to expanding SHS funding’s allowable uses to include construction and/or
acquisition of affordable housing, while also maintaining commitments to fund key services.

e Prioritizing any new affordable housing funding to focus on populations experiencing
chronic homelessness or the greatest risk of homelessness.

e Addressing the current 2030 sunset of the SHS taxes, to create greater funding stability for
providers, partners and people in need of homeless services, rent assistance and affordable
housing.

e Ensuring that funding for both services and housing continue to prioritize communities of
color, who are more likely to experience homelessness and housing instability in the region.

e Improving transparency, accountability and efficiency in the allocation, spending and
reporting of regional tax dollars.



STAFF REPORT: HOUSING FUNDING PROJECT JUNE 3, 2024

Next steps

Conversations are continuing with a number of stakeholders and partners in the region,
particularly local implementation partners, regional oversight and advisory committees, and other
key stakeholders. Metro also plans to conduct a third round of public opinion research in mid-June.

COO Madrigal intends to discuss her thinking on a recommendation with the Metro Council in July.
The recommendation may include changes that would require voter approval, such as expanding
allowable uses for SHS revenues, modifying the sunset or tax structures, and/or evolving
implementation and oversight structures for housing and homeless services. The soonest any
changes could be considered by voters would be November 2024, should the Metro Council choose
to refer a proposal to the ballot.



Path to a regional housing recommendation

The PorHlamA vegion is facing a pevsistent housing amd homelessuess crisis. In spring 2024, Metvo convened o convevsation with stakeholders, pavtuers oma
We have made progress, but theve is move to Ao. We know theve ave solutions commumities acvoss the vegion to explove how to keep making progress on
£ we wovk together to identify what's possivle amd pursue what wovks. housing amd homelesswess sevvices, together.

Discussions with ’eaa{
evs Lyq T
M

2! (‘Dpe v

St
“'\U\lu‘ > . o
HQS‘, Pevspectives ana expeviences ow optoys to A
a

l\
HP‘W

CoO0O Recommendatrion

Svship with Conlition of Communities of Colov; to Metvo Council

SHS oversight Comwmittee;

Project values

Committee o Ro\do\\ Tawty;

—
I =2 740

Public Investments
partner and revenue

SC’""M
ent : "9 be
e"W“ amab/su st Practices, intevviewing practitioners, reviewing outrcomes

URGENCY

o
RACIAL EQlITY E

STABILITY OF EXISTING PROGRAMS G

TRANSPARENCY AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Vervsion Aate: S/21/24



	ADPD7B4.tmp
	Welcome and Introductions
	Public Comment
	Director Update
	Conflict of Interest Declarations
	Closing and Next Steps

	ADP67C9.tmp
	Memo

	Staff report to AHBOC - Housing funding  project 06032024.pdf
	Staff report to AHBOC - Housing funding  project 06032024.pdf
	Path to COO recommendation - May212024.pdf




